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          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Good afternoon,

          3  members of the Finance Committee. We're here to

          4  consider the following items required for the

          5  adoption of the Fiscal 2004 budget.

          6                 We anticipating going from the

          7  Finance Committee to the floor, and the goal is to

          8  complete all deliberations before sundown, because a

          9  number of members want to make sure that because of

         10  the Jewish Sabbath, that we get all our business

         11  done before sundown.

         12                 Before we adopt the Fiscal'04 budget,

         13  we will deal with the Fiscal 2003 expense and

         14  revenue mod.

         15                 The expense mod contains a myriad of

         16  pluses and minuses with a net decrease of $4 million

         17  due to some needs. The revenue modification MN 6

         18  increases revenue in the net amount of $932,157,519

         19  for Fiscal 2003.

         20                 This amount includes an additional

         21  $138.2 million in tax revenue, decreases in

         22  miscellaneous revenue sources of 61.3 million,

         23  increases in unrestricted aid, anticipated revenue

         24  of $655.2 million and savings in prior year payables

         25  of 200 million.
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          2                 By preparing debt and other expenses,

          3  including the payment to the TFA, which issues the

          4  City's TFA debt, we will be able to roll $1.3

          5  billion from Fiscal Year '03 into Fiscal Year '04.

          6                 There are five pieces of legislation

          7  relating to the adoption of the Fiscal 2004 budget.

          8                 The first bill, Intro. No. 473,

          9  increases lobbyist and City Clerk fees.

         10                 The second bill, Intro. 474, is the

         11  absentee landlord surcharge. This legislation enacts

         12  a surcharge on property taxes paid by absentee

         13  landlords of Class 1 properties that generate

         14  income, where the property is not the primary

         15  residence of the owner or the owner's parents or

         16  children.

         17                 These owners currently benefit from

         18  more favorable treatment offered to owner-occupied

         19  residences, which other landlords do not receive.

         20                 The third bill, Intro. 496-A would

         21  authorize the Taxi and Limousine Commission to sell

         22  up to 900 additional taxi medallions over the next

         23  three years.

         24                 The bill requires that at least nine

         25  percent of the new licenses be for the vehicles
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          2  powered by natural gas or hybrid electric vehicles.

          3                 In addition, at least nine percent of

          4  licenses issued by the TLC must be fully accessible

          5  to persons with disabilities.

          6                 The fourth is Intro. No. 520, which

          7  renews the industrial and commercial incentive

          8  program.

          9                 The fifth bill, Intro. 521, makes a

         10  technical fix to the State revenue legislation

         11  passed in May that closes a loophole in the City's

         12  unincorporated business tax.

         13                 This effectuates the intent of that

         14  legislation which was to stop deductions for certain

         15  royalty payments to affiliates which are essentially

         16  made to avoid taxes.

         17                 There are a total of three

         18  resolutions that must be considered. Two resolutions

         19  of preconditions for fixing this year's property tax

         20  rate. They're the current based proportion

         21  resolution and the adjusted base proportion

         22  resolution.

         23                 We will then consider a unified

         24  expense and contract budget, and property tax fixing

         25  resolution.
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          2                 The overall property tax rate is

          3  unchanged from November of 2002. Parts A and B of

          4  this resolution adopt the expense and contract

          5  budgets.

          6                 As a result of the Council's urging,

          7  the Administration has restored $90 million in

          8  reductions for Fiscal 2004.

          9                 This will prevent some of the cuts to

         10  services and programs that were strongly opposed by

         11  this body.

         12                 In addition to the Administration's

         13  restoration, the Council has restored more than 115

         14  million in proposed cuts.

         15                 This amount includes $8 million to

         16  libraries which will preserve five or six-day a week

         17  service; $9 million to child care and welfare,

         18  saving 2,300 day care slots; 4.8 million to the zoo

         19  subsidy, preventing the closing of the Queens in

         20  Prospect Park Zoos; 5.5 million to CUNY, restoring

         21  full funding to the Peter F. Vallone Scholarship

         22  Program; 16 million to the Department of Education,

         23  reimbursing teachers for classroom supplies and

         24  materials; $8 million to the Department of Youth and

         25  Community Development; restoring after school funds
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          2  for 136,000 youth at beacon programs; 2.9 million to

          3  the Department of Health, preventing the closing of

          4  11 child health clinics; 2.8 million to the

          5  Department of Health for the infant mortality

          6  reduction initiative, and more than 2 million to the

          7  Department of Aging, keeping senior centers open and

          8  restoring funds for weekend meals.

          9                 We will also be considering the two

         10  capital budget resolutions for the capital budget as

         11  part of the negotiations with the Administration,

         12  the City Council was able to add millions of dollars

         13  for critical projects throughout the City of New

         14  York.

         15                 In its capital budget, the Council

         16  continues its commitment to improving the quality of

         17  education throughout the City. The capital budget

         18  includes over $73 million for various construction

         19  projects to the Department of Education.

         20                 The budget also includes an

         21  additional 70 million of Council-funded Park's

         22  projects, earmarked for the reconstruction,

         23  acquisition, and renovation of the City's parks and

         24  park buildings.

         25                 The Council, as always, continues to
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          2  pledge its support for the City's cultural

          3  institutions and libraries, adding an additional 59

          4  million for cultural institutions, and 25.1 million

          5  for the City's libraries.

          6                 Lastly, there are other chartered

          7  mandated action for consideration, including a reso,

          8  accepting the Mayor's debt certificate, and adopting

          9  the Community Development budget.

         10                 We will now hear from the Finance

         11  staff, led by Larian Angelo, on the budget

         12  modification. Ms. Angelo.

         13                 MS. ANGELO: Good afternoon.

         14                 First, the Finance Division, as

         15  usual, would like to thank all of the Council

         16  members who spent the last two months feeding us

         17  cookies and candies, fruit, culminating in a feast

         18  supplied by Simcha Felder.

         19                 I tried to learn how to say thank you

         20  in Yiddish but no one could help me. So, thank you

         21  very much. It's deeply appreciated.

         22                 I was going to give an overall on

         23  what it is that's before you today. You will face

         24  approximately eight inter-connected actions, all of

         25  which are needed to enact the Fiscal 2004 budget.
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          2                 The first thing you need to do is to

          3  close the books on Fiscal 2003. You will do this

          4  with two end of the year clean-up mods, MN 5 and MN

          5  6.

          6                 MN 5 is an expense mod that contains

          7  numerous positives and negatives over a variety of

          8  units of appropriation, all of which net out to a

          9  negative 4 million.

         10                 MN 6 is a revenue modification that

         11  recognizes 932 million in additional revenue,

         12  including 138 million in tax revenues, 420 million

         13  in FEMA aid, 200 million in prior year payables, and

         14  other state aid equal to that 235 million.

         15                 The City will finish this year with a

         16  surplus of about 1.3 billion that will be rolled to

         17  2004 through a variety of devices and which will

         18  help to balance next year's budget.

         19                 We have Cheech and Pablo to provide

         20  more detail on these two actions.

         21                 The roll will be used in the

         22  following way in 2004. Approximately 107 million

         23  will be prepaid for the libraries, about 206 million

         24  will be used to prepay the transit subsidy. 366

         25  million dollars will be used to prepay general
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          2  obligation debt; and 624 million dollars will be

          3  rolled through the Transitional Finance Authority.

          4                 After considering the mods, you will

          5  consider a unified budget resolution that includes

          6  the Expense budget, the contract budget and the

          7  property tax-fixing resolution.

          8                 The budget totals $43.7 billion, $865

          9  million less than the Fiscal 2003 budget.

         10                 It includes numerous restorations

         11  which the Chair of the Committee has discussed.

         12                 I will talk about highlighting the

         13  restorations in terms of both the Mayor's announced

         14  restorations and the Council's announced

         15  restorations, so that there will be an additional 15

         16  million for libraries, 16 million for cultural, 16

         17  million for education, nearly 11 million for CUNY,

         18  et cetera.

         19                 When you arrive at that part of

         20  today's work, Staci and Cheech will provide you with

         21  details on expense, and Nadine will provide you with

         22  details on the property tax, the tax-fixing

         23  resolution.

         24                 To fully fund the Expense Budget, you

         25  will consider five revenue bills: The sale of an
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          2  additional 900 taxi medallions, approximately 300

          3  per year; a technical correction to the

          4  unincorporated business tax, affectionately known as

          5  the Geoffrey the Giraffe bill; additional fees for

          6  the City Clerk and lobbyists; and extension of the

          7  ICIP program; and an absentee landlord surcharge

          8  which will be referenced in the tax-fixing

          9  resolution, and which will appear in the property

         10  tax reserve fund.

         11                 Pablo and Nadine will provide you

         12  with details on those bills.

         13                 Finally, you will consider today the

         14  Capital budget. The Council has chosen to

         15  reprioritize the capital budget. We're staying

         16  within the overall confines of the debt certificate.

         17                 Within those confines, the Council

         18  would add 1.6 million for Aging; that is projects in

         19  the Department for Aging, not for projects that are

         20  getting old.

         21                 Over 73 million for education,

         22  including a new initiative, spending $20 million for

         23  science labs in the middle schools, and 2.5 million

         24  for school libraries.

         25                 The Council's capital budget would
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          2  also add 18 million for CUNY, nearly 18 million for

          3  Libraries, almost 70 million for Parks, and 59

          4  million for Culturals. Jeff and Cheech will provide

          5  you with details on that portion of the budget.

          6                 So, it's obviously a very busy and

          7  extensive agenda, so we'll take questions now, if

          8  anyone has any.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes. Are any of

         10  the other Finance staff testifying?

         11                 MS. ANGELO: No.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.

         13                 MS. ANGELO: It might proceed more

         14  quickly if we just took your questions on all of the

         15  above.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: That's fine.

         17                 Council Member Lopez had a question.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Yes. It's with

         19  great sadness that I'm going to say what I'm going

         20  to say.

         21                 I was hoping that I didn't have to

         22  make a statement like this following one. I feel

         23  that I at this moment have to chastize the

         24  Administration for an action that I've just been

         25  informed that was taken by the Health Department,
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          2  and I feel very sad about it because I believe that

          3  Mayor Bloomberg has been a wonderful Mayor under the

          4  circumstances in which we have been, and in this

          5  budget, saying that I've been informed that the

          6  Mental Health Department took the action to transfer

          7  over $300 million from the Mental Health Department

          8  to the HHC Hospitals. In my opinion, that is

          9  illegal. In my opinion I want to raise that very

         10  clear in the budget.

         11                 According to the process that took

         12  care of the Charter Revision when the two

         13  Departments were merged, it was strictly put clear

         14  that the Department cannot transfer dollars from the

         15  Mental Health Department to the Health Department

         16  side or to any other Department facility. They

         17  cannot deplete the budget of the Mental Health size.

         18                 I believe that this action is

         19  illegal. I think it violates the Charter procedure

         20  that was adopted by the voters, and I'm going to

         21  right now as the final chair to make a note of this.

         22  I am not going to make the budget process being

         23  stopped based on this $3 million, but I want to make

         24  very clear, that if this is the way that the

         25  Administration thinks that they're going to corrupt
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          2  slowly the Mental Health budget, they are very

          3  mistaken, and I want to make that very clear here

          4  for the purpose of the record.

          5                 It is also very important for me to

          6  make my colleagues aware that this issue could have

          7  been discussed with us early in the budget process.

          8  This issue was never raised, never brought to our

          9  attention. It was never discussed with me by any of

         10  the Commissioners or by any of the members of the

         11  Administration.

         12                 Therefore, I cannot take this action

         13  lightly, because I don't know what other actions

         14  similar to these has been taken, and I have not been

         15  even aware of it.

         16                 I want to thank the members of the

         17  Finance Committee on our side, particularly to

         18  Peter, for discovering this so quickly from

         19  yesterday at 3:00 in the morning to today.

         20                 Then I want to make very clear to the

         21  Finance Committee, that we need to go back to this

         22  issue, and if this budget is approved under these

         23  circumstances, we need to correct this action once

         24  we look deeper into it, and I would like to get the

         25  commitment of the final chair on this issue, because
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          2  if this is going to be the beginning, I want to stop

          3  it right here.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: This may be the

          5  subject of an additional hearing we can have after

          6  the budget, because I think it is a serious issue.

          7  I'm not taking it lightly by any means, and I'd like

          8  to work with you on that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: The second item

         10  that I want to raise with the members of the Council

         11  is in regard to the effort made by the Speaker of

         12  this body in providing transportation that is

         13  accessible to people with disabilities. I want to

         14  publicly acknowledge his effort and his will to

         15  listen to my plea about finally getting some type of

         16  transportation in the form of taxis on the streets

         17  that are wheelchair accessible to the wheelchair

         18  community here.

         19                 I also want to take the opportunity

         20  to chastize the Administration in regard to this

         21  issue. It is shameful for me to stand here today and

         22  say that the Speaker has to put ten percent of the

         23  new medallion in place, instead of being the 900

         24  units, and it's also shameful to me to say that

         25  still today the Administration has not put in place
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          2  a law that was passed to make the base of the hire

          3  for fee vehicles wheelchair accessible. Today that

          4  has not happened, and the Commissioner of that

          5  Department knows very well that I had a conversation

          6  with him more than a year and a half ago where I was

          7  promised that this was going to be immediately

          8  implemented. Today we do not have wheelchair

          9  accessibilities in the vehicle for hire yet, and it

         10  still is an audacity put in place to put 900 new

         11  medallions on the City of New York that are not

         12  going to be wheelchair accessible.

         13                 I congratulate the Speaker, for the

         14  effort of the Finance Chair, and to Marcel for

         15  putting this forward. It's a token. I appreciate the

         16  token, but I am not ungrateful, I just have to say

         17  tokens are not good enough for the wheelchair

         18  accessible community. Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you, and

         20  well noted.

         21                 In the haste to start the meeting,

         22  and we've been joined by a number of colleagues, I

         23  did not introduce our members so I will do that

         24  briefly now.

         25                 I'm David Weprin, Chair of the
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          2  Finance Committee. Starting on the right we have

          3  Council Member Bill DeBlasio from Brooklyn. Council

          4  Member Gale Brewer from Manhattan, Council Member

          5  Eric Martin Dilan from Brooklyn, Council Member

          6  Christine Quinn from Manhattan, Council Member Lew

          7  Fidler from Brooklyn, Council Member Tracy Boyland

          8  from Brooklyn, Council Member Margarita Lopez from

          9  Manhattan, who you just heard from.

         10                 Immediately next to me are Majority

         11  Leader Joel Rivera, from the Bronx; next to him, our

         12  Majority Whip, Council Member Leroy Comrie from

         13  Queens; Council Member Madeline Provenzano from the

         14  Bronx; Council Member Robert Jackson from Manhattan;

         15  Council Member Mike McMahon from Staten Island;

         16  Council Member Helen Sears from Queens; and Council

         17  Member Simcha Felder from Brooklyn.

         18                 I believe Council Member Sears has a

         19  question.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I believe that

         21  the Chair of the Mental Health, Margarita Lopez, has

         22  a very valid issue, and should follow up.

         23                 My question is, the money that you're

         24  saying was moved from Mental Health to HHC, do you

         25  know if it was shifted to the psychiatric units of
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          2  the Health and Hospital Corporation?

          3                 MS. EMANUEL: We're told that's where

          4  it's likely to end up.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay. And do

          6  you know what it's depleted in the Mental Health

          7  clinics that are not in the concentrated areas of

          8  those tertiary hospitals?

          9                 MS. ANGELO: Just to clarify. This, we

         10  found out about this at about 3:00 in the morning

         11  when OMB returned our changes to us to check

         12  through, and our initial response was this is an

         13  administrative error, that something had been put in

         14  the wrong unit of appropriation. But it was 3:00 in

         15  the morning and no one was there for us to talk

         16  with.

         17                 So, unless Peter has more details on

         18  it since that time, it's something for further

         19  investigation. Again, it just happened at 3:00 a.m.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Because even if

         21  it's moved to the psychiatric unit, it should not at

         22  the expense of the other clinics that are not

         23  affiliated particularly with mental health clinics,

         24  they should not be robbing Peter to pay Paul. So,

         25  hopefully that's not the case.
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          2                 MS. ANGELO: I mean, we're trying to

          3  figure out if it was simply an administrative thing,

          4  it's just the money is in a different place, or

          5  there's some change of service. We don't know yet,

          6  because as I said, we just got it at about 3:00 a.m.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

          8  McMahon had a question.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I do. Thank

         10  you, Mr. Chairman.

         11                 Hi, Larian, to you and all of your

         12  staff. We are very grateful for all the hard work

         13  you've done, not only to help us through this but on

         14  behalf of the people of the City of New York in

         15  general.

         16                 Larian, what you've just given us is

         17  really sort of a snapshot of where we are today and

         18  what we're doing today and my concern is that people

         19  will forget starting last fall we started out really

         20  sort of producing a much longer film or movie, if

         21  you will, about the recovery of New York City, and

         22  we have to remember that in terms of what we're

         23  doing today.

         24                 So, could you help me just paint a

         25  broader picture of how the actions we're taking
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          2  today fold into the $8 billion recovery that we're

          3  trying to do on behalf of the City of New York,

          4  because I know, and I read in some of the

          5  newspapers, that the City has a surplus of $1.3

          6  billion, but that, I believe, if I'm correct, has

          7  been planned out and charted out to be part of

          8  really an 18-month recovery process. Because you

          9  know what's going to happen, it's going to be

         10  reported again tomorrow, not that the reporters

         11  don't get everything straight here, but I think the

         12  general public also has to understand that that is

         13  only because of action, cuts that we impose, revenue

         14  enhancements that we impose, and it's part of a much

         15  longer process, and if you would just put it into

         16  that broader perspective?

         17                 MS. ANGELO: Yes, you're absolutely

         18  right, Councilman McMahon, which is why my mother

         19  voted for you I'm sure.

         20                 Yes, as we all remember, the Council

         21  and the Mayor together last June did a budget that

         22  while it instituted a large cut package,

         23  nonetheless, was sort of instituted in the hope of

         24  recovery, and the recovery did not materialize.

         25                 During the summer the stock market
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          2  tanked, first due to the corporate scandals, and

          3  then due to the threat of war and then due to the

          4  war and it really is only in the spring that we're

          5  beginning to see something of a recovery in the

          6  financial services industry, which is really what

          7  powers the City's economy.

          8                 By the fall it was clear that the

          9  City was facing at least a $7 billion budget

         10  deficit, which was extraordinary both in absolute

         11  size and as a percentage of the budget. The Mayor

         12  responded saying that although the budget might be

         13  42, 43 billion dollars, only about $16 billion of

         14  that budget was discretionary, meaning that it could

         15  be cut. The rest were mandated services at the State

         16  or federal level.

         17                 The Finance Division went through a

         18  similar exercise and came out with a similar result,

         19  about $15 billion was cutable in the legal sense,

         20  but in many ways not cutable in the governmental

         21  sense.

         22                 While there is no mandate any longer

         23  to have a Police Department, clearly no one in the

         24  City wanted to put the Police Department back to

         25  20,000 police officers or slash the number of
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          2  teachers, et cetera.

          3                 So, in the fall, the Council and the

          4  Mayor together enacted a budget modification that

          5  substantially raised property taxes, and

          6  substantially cut services. The service cut, if I

          7  recall was equal to about $850 million, and the

          8  property tax increase was something similar.

          9                 This then permitted the City to, as

         10  it were, pull back from the bring of a control

         11  period, and get through the spring. But it was also

         12  evident that the City could not do this on its own,

         13  which is why both the Speaker and the Mayor,

         14  although with different programs, went to Washington

         15  and Albany and demanded what they believe to be the

         16  City's fair share.

         17                 The Speaker in Washington had a

         18  program that would have gotten us more reimbursement

         19  for the anti-terrorist activity, and instituted a

         20  program of federal revenue sharing, which we are

         21  happy to announce is now part of the president's tax

         22  package which was passed and signed, so that states

         23  at least will be getting some help from the federal

         24  government.

         25                 The federal government also agreed to
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          2  increase the percentage match it makes to states for

          3  Medicaid, and that's the FMAP that was referred to,

          4  and this, because we share with the State, unlike

          5  any other municipality in the United States, the

          6  burden of Medicaid, this translates directly into

          7  budget savings for the City.

          8                 The Mayor and the Council also went

          9  to Albany, with again somewhat different packages,

         10  with the Speaker demanding a fair share commuter

         11  tax, with the Mayor presenting another commuter tax,

         12  both sides calling for a reversal of the cuts to

         13  education, both sides calling for a reversal of the

         14  Governor's proposal to reform so-called reform

         15  Medicaid, and that the City was actually successful

         16  in that program, as well, although, again, not

         17  getting specific items asked for but getting a total

         18  of $2.7 billion in a combination of direct aid and

         19  permission to raise taxes at the local level.

         20                 So, those actions all combined put us

         21  in the position the budget is in today, with the

         22  ability to roll about a $1.3 billion surplus, and

         23  because the economy appears to be recovering

         24  somewhat, there was at the end of the year a small

         25  amount of additional tax revenue, I believe $135

                                                            25

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  million more in tax collections, which is not much

          3  but is certainly a good sign.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: But part of

          5  the plan that we embarked on in November, also

          6  contemplating creating the surplus and rolling it

          7  over into next year's budget to fill that gap, and

          8  that gap, as we looked at it in November of last

          9  year, to 2004 Fiscal Year, was about six and a half

         10  billion dollars, structurally; is that correct?

         11                 MS. ANGELO: Yes, that's correct.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And for those

         13  who say, well, now we have a surplus of 1.3 billion

         14  and we don't need to do this, that or the other

         15  thing, will be creating a hole in next year's

         16  budget, which was planned on as part of this ongoing

         17  process to courageously meet the challenges faced by

         18  these fiscal difficulties; is that correct?

         19                 MS. ANGELO: That's correct.

         20                 And I should also point out that many

         21  of the State actions, although they provide relief

         22  this year, in the coming year, fiscal '04, are what

         23  are termed one-shots.

         24                 So, they will help this year, but

         25  they will not be there next year.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And as we sit

          3  here now, what is the structural gap for '05?

          4                 MS. ANGELO: The Mayor, I believe,

          5  would estimate that gap right now at about 1.8

          6  billion. The fiscal monitors would probably go to 3

          7  billion.

          8                 And, you know, you'll have to see as

          9  the year goes on, you know, what breaks for the

         10  City, what breaks against the City, but most

         11  monitors would put that gap at about 3 billion.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: So, certainly

         13  for those that would argue that completing the plan

         14  today is not necessary, they would in fact be wrong

         15  because the plan is not completed, and will not be

         16  completed for some time; is that correct?

         17                 MS. ANGELO: The City's budget is --

         18  you know, it has come back from the brink of fiscal

         19  disaster, but it is in no way flush, to use a

         20  technical term.

         21                 There's a serious problem in '05, and

         22  there are risks in the '04 budget. There's always a

         23  risk of overtime, there's a risk for additional

         24  public assistance costs. So there are a variety or

         25  risks still facing the City.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And in fact

          3  those costs that we cannot get control over because

          4  we don't have the power are continuing to grow at a

          5  dramatic rate; is that not correct?

          6                 So, my final question is, so those

          7  who would think that because we were able to avert

          8  disasters, like cuts in ferry service or cuts in

          9  sanitation service or child care slots or parks or

         10  things like that, thinking that, well, happy days

         11  are here again, and we don't have to be responsible

         12  and continue to deal with the issues, they would be

         13  off the mark; is that correct?

         14                 MS. ANGELO: I think that's

         15  substantially correct. I'm not smiling all that

         16  much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: A number of

         18  members wanted to ask questions, but I just want to

         19  remind everybody that we have to hear from the Taxi

         20  and Limousine Commissioner Matt Daus on the taxi

         21  medallions and we have to hear from our

         22  distinguished colleague, the City Clerk Victor

         23  Robles on the increase in other fees, and we also

         24  have to hear from the Finance Department on the

         25  Absentee Landlord Surcharge, and the ICIP program.
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          2  So, if I could beg your indulgence, if it's not

          3  necessary to ask the Finance staff specific

          4  questions that can be covered later, I'd prefer we

          5  go on to the other witnesses, if that's possible.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Just a point of

          7  order.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Does anybody feel

          9  obligated to ask the Finance staff a question right

         10  now?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I just want to

         12  ask a point of order.

         13                 The staffed testified here that they

         14  don't know what is the situation in regard to this 3

         15  million something dollars, because they don't know

         16  if it's a mistake, or it's something that was

         17  intended.

         18                 Can we get clarification from the

         19  part of the Administration on the record?

         20                 MS. ANGELO: Councilwoman, we have

         21  verified that it was not just a mistake. We thought

         22  it was last night, but we have verification that

         23  they did intend to put it there, so that's --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: You have

         25  verification from who, please? For the purpose of
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          2  the record I need to hear this.

          3                 MS. EMANUEL: From the Office of

          4  Management and Budget.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: They made this

          6  decision?

          7                 MS. EMANUEL: Yes, they did.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then this is

          9  not a decision put in place by the Department by the

         10  Department Commissioners?

         11                 MS. EMANUEL: It could be. We don't

         12  know. This was just in our conversations with OMB.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then we don't

         14  have clarification.

         15                 I mean, what it's involving here is

         16  policy. And what it's involving here are mandates

         17  under the Charter of this City. It's not just simply

         18  a decision from the Administrative process and I

         19  want to get clarity on that.

         20                 I need to know if the Commissioner

         21  ordered this, if the Commissioner agreed to this. I

         22  need to understand if this came from the Department.

         23                 MS. ANGELO: I think that my only

         24  clarification was that it was not an error. It's a

         25  $42 billion budget, mistakes happen, this clearly is
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          2  not an error. We don't yet know who decided to do

          3  it, at what level the decision was made.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then should we

          5  assume in this Committee that this was a decision,

          6  by the Department? Or should I assume something

          7  else?

          8                 MS. EMANUEL: Well, initially the $3

          9  million was cut out of the budget.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I understand

         11  that. And we restored it by Margarita Lopez pushing

         12  her fist all the way, right?

         13                 MS. EMANUEL:  So, when we restored

         14  it, OMB made a decision to transfer it to HHC.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then, again, I

         16  want that for the record, because what that indicate

         17  to me is that policies that have to be implemented

         18  by the Department only that had to do with

         19  transferring some dollars from the Mental Health

         20  Department to any other jurisdiction is being

         21  violated right now by the side of the Mayor's office

         22  making financial decisions that had to do with

         23  Charter mandates and with policies in the

         24  Department.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I'm only going to
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          2  allow two more questions of this witness, because we

          3  really have to move this along, and the next two

          4  questioners are going to be Council Member DeBlasio

          5  and then Quinn and then we're going to move on to

          6  the other witnesses.

          7                 Council Member DeBlasio.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Thank you,

          9  Mr. Chairman. I'll be very brief.

         10                 Just on the modification document,

         11  the list here, just a clarification on some of the

         12  bigger items.

         13                 As General Welfare Chairman I'm

         14  concerned about Administration for Children's

         15  Services appear to have a $2.6 million loss in the

         16  mod. I just want to understand what that is?

         17                 MS. EMANUEL: It's 2.1 million going

         18  in, not a loss.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Am I reading

         20  wrong on this page?

         21                 MS. EMANUEL: I'm sorry. I'm on the

         22  wrong page.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Because it's

         24  in parentheses.

         25                 MS. EMANUEL: Yes. It's a $2 million
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          2  --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: I've learned

          4  that much.

          5                 2.6 million restructuring downward in

          6  the mod; can we know what that is?

          7                 MS. EMANUEL: Oh, this is the child

          8  care swap with HRA.

          9                 The net is zero. They're replacing

         10  City tax levy dollars with child care block grant

         11  funding.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: So, the

         13  actual impact on ACS services you're saying is zero?

         14                 MS. EMANUEL: Right.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Pension

         16  contribution, obviously, the biggest item, $154

         17  million, I just want to understand, is there

         18  something to that we should understand?

         19                 MR. TRAMONTANO: The pension

         20  contribution reduction, and remember, this is for

         21  Fiscal Year '03, was primarily because of a

         22  reevaluation from the actuary about the real costs,

         23  the OMB estimate that they were carrying was a

         24  little bit higher, and then that was a primary

         25  reduction in   Fiscal Year '03.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: So, this is

          3  an actual --

          4                 MR. TRAMONTANO: This was actually in

          5  the Executive Budget. This was in the Executive

          6  Budget that was released on April 15th.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Reduction in

          8  actual spending, it's not a reduction in --

          9                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Employer

         10  contribution, yes. It's a reduction in employer

         11  contribution. The budget was higher than what actual

         12  payments had to be.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Okay. And

         14  the last big one is the Department of Environmental

         15  Protection, $46 million reduction.

         16                 MS. EMANUEL: What's happening here is

         17  there is a rollover, there's been underspending in

         18  various areas in contracts, funding for a drought,

         19  and this is just rolling over --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Nothing

         21  programmatic?

         22                 MS. EMANUEL: No.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: And in

         24  conclusion, because there's a historical pattern of

         25  the Brooklyn Borough President's office taking it on
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          2  the chin, and I'm trying to understand why are they

          3  taking the biggest hit? I know it's only 26,000,

          4  they had very little left. Why are they losing

          5  26,000 bucks? Brooklyn BP.

          6                 MS. EMANUEL: Heat, light and power

          7  adjustment.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Actual

          9  usage?

         10                 MS. EMANUEL: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Okay. Thank

         12  you very much.

         13                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

         15  Quinn.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you. This

         17  isn't as much of a question but more of a statement.

         18  I just wanted to state for the record that I

         19  recently, only very recently by our staff, not by

         20  the Department of Health and Mental Hygiene staff,

         21  was informed of this issue regarding DOH and HHC and

         22  this is not the first time, unfortunately, that

         23  there have been shanagans so-to-speak relating to

         24  the Department of Health's budget and them not

         25  necessarily doing which is in black and white in the
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          2  budget on paper, and I just want to be clear for the

          3  record with my colleagues, but more important from

          4  those folks who are here from the Office of

          5  Legislative Affairs, the Department of Health or

          6  whatever, that the contract may have been moved from

          7  DOH to HHC, but in the mind of the Council's Health

          8  Committee, these are still clearly under the

          9  jurisdiction of our Committee on Mental Health, that

         10  the Health Committee is going to work with the

         11  Committee on Mental Health following the Chair's

         12  lead to make sure that these items are moved back to

         13  where they should be in the Department of Health and

         14  Mental Hygiene, but if they think moving them into

         15  HHC is going to prevent the Committee on Mental

         16  Health under whose jurisdiction these fall from

         17  being the lead advocate on this issue, you know,

         18  that they're wrong, and that the Committee on Health

         19  is as outraged at this last-minute maneuver, as the

         20  Committee on Mental Health, and that we're united on

         21  that opposition to this type of, you know,

         22  late-night switch to try to, I think what it looks

         23  like, remove resources from people with mental

         24  challenges in this City, and, you know, they may

         25  have done it at the last minute thinking it would
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          2  get through and we would just stand for it, but that

          3  is absolutely not going to be the case, and I just

          4  wanted to make sure the Administration knew that

          5  both of the Committees were united in this and we

          6  would be following the lead of Chairperson Lopez.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, the next

          8  witness is going to be the City Clerk, Victor

          9  Robles.

         10                 Thank you. And the Finance staff will

         11  be around to answer any questions of members

         12  throughout the process.

         13                 Mr. Robles, do you have a prepared

         14  statement?

         15                 CITY CLERK ROBLES: No, I don't, Mr.

         16  Chairman. I'm just prepared to answer any questions

         17  with respect to my office proposed fee increases.

         18                 Let me just point out for my

         19  colleagues first --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: If you could

         21  point out the amount of the increases, just for the

         22  record?

         23                 CITY CLERK ROBLES: Sure.

         24                 Let me just say that this increase

         25  request is the first time since 1990. We have not
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          2  had an increase since 1990, and, so, in order to

          3  assist in this budget process, my agency happens to

          4  be a revenue-generating agency, and, so, we're more

          5  than happy to work with the Administration and also

          6  with this Council. As you know, I'm the City Clerk,

          7  I'm also the Clerk of the Council.

          8                 Our marriage licenses currently are

          9  $30 per license. It will go up to $35 increase.

         10                 The Commissioner of Deeds, currently

         11  at 25.75, we're going to raise it up by 50 cents, so

         12  it will go up to around $26.

         13                 Our lobbyist registration currently

         14  is $100, we're going to raise it up to 150 for the

         15  first registrant, and then thereafter it's going to

         16  -- currently it's $20, we're going to go raise it

         17  to 50. So, if you're a lobbyist and you first

         18  register, it's 150, every other client after that

         19  it's $50.

         20                 Amendments, you know, people who

         21  perhaps change their names, or after they're married

         22  they realize that their data of birth, or anything

         23  that changes the license itself, that's an

         24  amendment, currently it's $25, we're going to go up

         25  to $40 for amendment.

                                                            38

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 Hand signature. Any document that is

          3  used outside the continent of the United States for

          4  foreign purposes requires the City clerks signature,

          5  the seal of the City of New York, then it goes to

          6  the County Clerk and the State Department before it

          7  becomes a legal document for international use.

          8  Currently we charge $3 for that signature, we will

          9  charge now $10.

         10                 Oath of office, it's amazing, when I

         11  first became the City Clerk and even as Council

         12  Member, it was 15 cents. It's been 15 cents since

         13  the City became the City of New York, we're still

         14  charging 15 cents, and when I sat with OMB on

         15  discussing this, I could not see imposing increases

         16  on fees for working people, and then all of a sudden

         17  here we are elected officials, public servant, we're

         18  still at 15 cents, that fee will go from 15 cents to

         19  $9.

         20                 And the one thing that has never

         21  happened before --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Can you tell us

         23  what percentage increase that is? For the record,

         24  I'd like to know the percentage increase.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: You're going
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          2  to have some time getting this through, and you said

          3  this was your idea?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I need a

          5  calculator for that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And you said

          7  this was your idea?

          8                 CITY CLERK ROBLES: We also currently,

          9  as you know, in the City of New York, since we're a

         10  City of a million and more, under the Domestic

         11  Relations Law, anyone performing a marriage in the

         12  City of New York, or coming into the City of New

         13  York to perform a marriage, must register with the

         14  City Clerk. You cannot perform a marriage in the

         15  City unless you're registered with me.

         16                 Currently there has been no fee

         17  whatsoever. So, it's not only in terms of the

         18  clergy, it's also judges, it's also mayors, former

         19  mayors, city clerks, my deputies, county clerks,

         20  retired judges, retired mayors, who now can still

         21  perform marriages, currently there is no fee

         22  whatsoever. We are going to be charging $15 for

         23  registering with us. And the last thing we're

         24  looking at currently, Mr. Chairman, and my

         25  colleagues, is if someone chooses to marry outside
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          2  the country, countries now mandate that they show

          3  that at least where they live, meaning the City of

          4  New York, that they are not, or have not had

          5  previous marriages. That's called a "certificate of

          6  no impediment." Currently we're only charging $5, we

          7  will only raise it to $15.

          8                 That in total, although there are

          9  still other actions that we're looking for down the

         10  road, in terms of the State Legislature, currently

         11  will bring us, in terms of my agency, almost a half

         12  a million dollars in next year's fiscal year.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         14                 Council Member Brewer.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chairman.

         17                 Mr. Robles, how do people pay these

         18  fees? Obviously the 15 cents I think we paid in

         19  change, but in terms of credit cards, on-line,

         20  check, cash, how does the money usually come in? And

         21  is there any other way that we could make it come in

         22  that would be more, bring it in faster or more

         23  successfully?

         24                 CITY CLERK ROBLES: Let me say, when I

         25  became the City Clerk, which this October it will be
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          2  two years, the one thing I noticed is that all we

          3  accept is money orders, and I couldn't understand

          4  why, until I was educated.

          5                 Unfortunately, given the time in the

          6  past, particularly in one office in Queens, one of

          7  my deputies actually was held up with a gun to her

          8  head twice, and there was a decision made by the

          9  previous administration not to accept any cash

         10  payments, but rather money orders.

         11                 I am currently meeting with and

         12  exploring with the Administration and OMB on those

         13  other options that you mentioned, like credit cards,

         14  what have you. But currently the policy of my office

         15  is only money orders.

         16                 Now, please understand that if I have

         17  a senior citizen, for example, or somebody who comes

         18  in from out of the country, and let's say they want

         19  two certificates, which is $31 and they only have a

         20  money order for $30, I have set the policy that

         21  we'll take the dollar, they would rather have

         22  somebody go back and get a money order that would

         23  charge only the dollar, but the fee also.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: But people

         25  could pay on line credit card and then arrive for
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          2  the marriage license and it would already be taken

          3  care of.

          4                 I'm just saying there are ways of

          5  perhaps making it easier on the customer, for lack

          6  of a better word, and something to think about,

          7  because I think in the end you might actually

          8  collect more.

          9                 CITY CLERK ROBLES: As you know, most

         10  of the Council members, pretty soon you will be

         11  getting from me a binder, which we are now going to

         12  also have our own web site so that I agree with you,

         13  Council member, one thing I'm trying to do, at least

         14  as far as my administration is, to make it more of

         15  a, like we used to discuss a lot of one-stop shop?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right.

         17                 CITY CLERK ROBLES: And, so, on line

         18  we are also, right now I am spending money on making

         19  the web site bilingual. My goal is to make it

         20  multilingual, because you are now having large Asian

         21  community, and so, starting off with the largest

         22  concentration, which is Spanish speaking, those

         23  things that you've said, we are now negotiating,

         24  seeing how it is best to implement, what it will

         25  cost us in terms of dollars and cents to the City,
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          2  and where we can we will do that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

          4                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We've done the

          6  calculation and it's 5,900 percent increase.

          7                 Thank you, Mr. Robles.

          8                 We will now hear from the Chairman of

          9  the Taxi and Limousine Commission, Matthew Daus. I

         10  saw him earlier, I know he's here.

         11                 Commissioner Daus, I understand you

         12  have a prepared statement?

         13                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes, I do.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: A prepared brief

         15  statement, and if you could introduce your

         16  colleagues, as well.

         17                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Sure. I'll be very

         18  brief. I know you need to move a lot of things

         19  through here.

         20                 To my left is Barbara Schechter, she

         21  is our Deputy Commissioner for Policies and

         22  Programs. To her left is Peter Mazur, the TLC's

         23  General Counsel. To my right is Jed Applebaum, he's

         24  our Assistant Commissioner for Safety and Omissions.

         25                 Good afternoon, Chairman Weprin and
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          2  members of the Finance Committee. My name is Matthew

          3  Daus, I'm the Commissioner/Chair of the TLC. I have

          4  been invited here to testify today on behalf of the

          5  Bloomberg Administration in favor of Intro. No.

          6  496-A, which would authorize the issuance of

          7  additional taxicab medallions.

          8                 The number of licensed cabs

          9  authorized to operate in the City of New York,

         10  yellow cabs, that is, is fixed at law, at 12,187.

         11  Taxi ownership has clearly been a mechanism whereby

         12  many New Yorkers have fulfilled the American dream

         13  by owning and operating a small business.

         14                 Recently the New York State

         15  Legislature, authorized the issuance of up to 900

         16  new medallion cabs.

         17                 The TLC has commenced the process

         18  whereby an environmental review and analysis is

         19  being conducted with respect to whether these

         20  additional medallions would impact upon traffic

         21  congestion, and air quality.

         22                 This review should be completed by

         23  the fall.

         24                 There appears to be a need for

         25  additional taxicabs, which would be addressed by
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          2  this bill.

          3                 For example, taxicab ridership has

          4  steadily increased since 2001, and has reached its

          5  second highest level during 2002, when nearly 240

          6  million passengers were transported by yellow cabs

          7  in the City of New York.

          8                 Beyond providing additional services,

          9  this bill addresses areas of concern to the

         10  Commission, and as well to the Council. Promoting

         11  alternative fuel vehicles, and the provision of

         12  transportation to persons with disabilities.

         13                 By providing that nine percent of the

         14  vehicles from each sale are accessible, we are

         15  reaffirming our commitment to providing

         16  transportation to persons with disabilities. Such

         17  service will supplement TLC initiatives to provide

         18  accessible for-hire services pursuant to its rules.

         19                 And if I could just take a moment to

         20  thank not only the Mayor, but Speaker Miller, and

         21  Council Member Lopez, who I think are staunch

         22  advocates of the disabled community for really being

         23  persistent.

         24                 I know there are things here that can

         25  and should be done, and a lot of different ideas,
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          2  but I think that this is a good start towards

          3  getting more yellow cabs that are accessible, and I

          4  know that this is an issue that's near and dear to

          5  the Council Member's heart.

          6                 And we stand with you and we're going

          7  to look to try to have the most worthwhile manner by

          8  which we can get this issue addressed.

          9                 Just so you know some information,

         10  because I heard you earlier speak as to why it's

         11  taking so long for the TLC to get this done.

         12                 The good news is that we want to make

         13  sure that there is service for people with

         14  disabilities when we announce our enforcement date.

         15                 To that end, we've been pursuing

         16  trying to get private interests instead of specialty

         17  car service spaces where they will basically have a

         18  fleet of accessible minivans that are able to be

         19  deployed.

         20                 Eventually we want to get every

         21  livery base to either own its own or contract with

         22  another company to get an accessible vehicle

         23  delivered to thousands of disabled New Yorkers so

         24  that they can go places in an integrated setting.

         25                 The good news is that one such base,
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          2  the name of the base, an application was just filed

          3  with us the other day called "Rides For All." And we

          4  also have another base that's looking to file an

          5  application with the Commission that's involved with

          6  Easter Seals, and as soon as we finish reviewing the

          7  base application, we will forward it to the Council.

          8  As soon as the Council approves the base

          9  application, we will announce forthwith an

         10  enforcement date, and that's a date by which every

         11  livery base will need to either buy its own vehicle,

         12  or contract with one of these licensed bases, so we

         13  are moving on that, and it's also a good thing to

         14  provide incentives for and try to get a test of what

         15  the market would be in the yellow industry for an

         16  accessible minivan.

         17                 Likewise, to set aside alternative

         18  fuel vehicles demonstrates a commitment to a cleaner

         19  environment. The initiative will supplement other

         20  efforts the TLC has made to protect the environment,

         21  including mandatory vehicle retirement and triennial

         22  vehicle inspections.

         23                 Every yellow cab must currently go

         24  and be inspected by the TLC three times each year.

         25  We have 116 compressed natural gas vehicles on the
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          2  road as we speak. The more the better. And I think

          3  this legislation will do just that.

          4                 There are also various incentives

          5  that are out there that we support. First of all,

          6  the ability to get federal and state tax credits, to

          7  retrofit a vehicle to become outfitted for

          8  accessible, not accessible, for alternative fuel,

          9  whether it's a hybrid electric or T&G, and also you

         10  can get reimbursement under a NYSERDA program, of up

         11  to 80 percent of your retrofitting costs, not to

         12  exceed $6,000.

         13                 So those incentives are in place, and

         14  I actually have some good news to record to the

         15  Council Members on actually combining both issues

         16  that are the subject of this bill. Accessible

         17  vehicles and clean air vehicles. We have just

         18  entered into negotiations with the New York State,

         19  NYSERDA, New York State Energy Research Development

         20  Authority. They are going to be issuing an RFP to

         21  manufacturers, to provide them with money so that

         22  they can research and come up with an accessible

         23  vehicle that is also clean air and alternative fuel

         24  driven, to combine both together so that we can have

         25  a vehicle that comes off the assembly line which is
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          2  affordable and which we can have insurance for.

          3                 And I know Council Member Yassky, who

          4  is not here today, is a staunch advocate of clean

          5  air vehicles and we look forward to working with him

          6  and the other Council members.

          7                 In sum, the Bloomberg Administration

          8  and the TLC supports number Intro. 496-A and its

          9  goals of providing additional taxicab service to the

         10  public and of generating some much needed additional

         11  revenue for the City.

         12                 I'm glad to be here and I'm happy to

         13  answer any questions you have.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         15  Commissioner.

         16                 Council Member Lopez.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Commissioner,

         18  when are we supposed to implement the mandate that

         19  was put in place in regard of the hire for fee

         20  vehicles being wheelchair accessible? Can you just

         21  tell me the date that that's supposed to happen?

         22                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: If everything goes

         23  according to plan, the Council approves the

         24  application in an expeditious manner on or before

         25  September 1st.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Isn't that time

          3  passed already when this deadline was put in place

          4  in place prior?

          5                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Right. Well, the

          6  law was passed in 2000. A deadline was put into

          7  place at the end of October 2001, and we were ready

          8  to enforce it at that time, but then after September

          9  11th, the businesses experienced over 15 percent of

         10  revenue decline.

         11                 And also at the time, under the new

         12  Administration, we had to make some severe budget

         13  cuts to the agency, so I had a choice of either

         14  laying off workers, or cutting the million dollar

         15  fund that we had, which I believe was an important

         16  incentive to try to get this program off the ground.

         17                 Therefore, we deferred enforcement,

         18  but we didn't stop our fight to try to get

         19  additional means by which we can enforce this law,

         20  and I feel that it's a practical aspect, Council

         21  member. An enforcement date to the disabled

         22  community doesn't mean anything unless it's coupled

         23  with service. That's why I think it's important to

         24  make sure we have a licensed base that's out there.

         25  Because when we say we're going to start providing
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          2  the service, people have no place to call. We want

          3  them to at least be able to call one or two

          4  businesses, where they can pick up the phone and get

          5  some service, and as time goes on, we'll work very

          6  closely with your office, with the disabled

          7  community, the Council, to make sure that we get the

          8  word out and that we build upon that foundation.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That is not the

         10  opinion of the disabled community, Commissioner. I

         11  want you to know that when laws are passed to

         12  protect the rights of people who are disabled, it is

         13  not good enough to say that enforcing the law

         14  without the services is not something that the

         15  disabled community doesn't want.

         16                 What we're talking about is the City

         17  of New York, a City that is the prime City of the

         18  entire world, who is not accessible to people with

         19  disabilities. And what we're talking about is a

         20  segregated City that in any other part of this

         21  nation segregation has ended.

         22                 This is a segregated City when we

         23  talk about transportation and the ability of people

         24  with disability to be able to be transported equally

         25  as everybody else is.
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          2                 MR. MAZUR: I couldn't agree with you

          3  more on that.

          4                 I understand that this has been a

          5  long time waiting for the disabled community. We're

          6  moving as fast as we possibly can. I'm committed to

          7  the cause. As Counsel to the TLC I help draft those

          8  laws, and I'm proud to say that these laws are the

          9  first of their kind in the entire nation, and I know

         10  there are other cities that have accessible service,

         11  but the accessible service that they have is

         12  different, you know, because they have radio

         13  dispatch systems in other cities where you can

         14  either hail or call for a cab. We are a little bit

         15  unique. And we did have, I think, a tremendous

         16  tragedy that happened that set us back.

         17                 So, I think clearly we're on the

         18  right track, we've rebounded, we're ready to do

         19  this. I know that you're committed to this issue.

         20  I'm here to tell you that we are incredibly

         21  committed to moving forward right now, and now is

         22  the time. And I think it's an outrage that Congress

         23  passed the ADA without providing this type --

         24  exempting taxicabs years ago, but that doesn't mean

         25  that New York City shouldn't go, as it does in every
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          2  other area, far above and beyond with other cities

          3  and states and the nation does.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: A point of

          5  clarification, Commissioner.

          6                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: It is true or

          8  not, and correct me, that only in three different

          9  occasions medallions has been issued in this City,

         10  as far away as 1930 something, 1996 --

         11                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: 1996 and '97.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: 1996 and '97.

         13  That is correct?

         14                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I want to make

         16  for the record clear that this City shamefully is

         17  deciding today to release 900 new medallions for

         18  yellow taxis that are not going to be wheelchair

         19  accessible, with a record in which I just mentioned,

         20  that in the last 100 years only three times

         21  medallions has been released, and right now we have

         22  the opportunity, the incredible opportunity to get

         23  900 vehicles out there that are yellow cabs that

         24  will be able to transport disabled people, if we

         25  really commit ourself to the belief that the
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          2  constitution apply equally to all, and that is to

          3  include people with disabilities.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

          5  Brewer.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: A quick

          7  question, Chairman.

          8                 I certainly support clean taxis and

          9  alternative fuel; is there a longer shelf life,

         10  so-to-speak? I know that the fuel may or may not be

         11  relevant, but I was just wondering, a lot of

         12  drivers, of course, love to keep their taxis longer

         13  than what they are allowed to with the current

         14  system, and I was just wondering, obviously the body

         15  of the taxi would probably weigh more and the

         16  quality of the streets, but is there any

         17  relationship between the fuel and the new taxis in a

         18  longer shelf life, or is it apples and oranges?

         19                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I'm going to have

         20  our expert Jed Applebaum answer those questions

         21  about the specifics of the vehicles.

         22                 I can't tell you, you know, that the

         23  real issue with CNG, we had a mandate that was

         24  undone years ago, is the infrastructure. The TLC

         25  proceeded to try to get more CNG vehicles out there,
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          2  and what ultimately happened is there were certain

          3  expectations of there being more fueling stations,

          4  and what happened is those expectations never were

          5  met.

          6                 And drivers, there's not much

          7  incentive for a driver to buy a vehicle like this

          8  when you have to wait in line behind buses, and

          9  behind Con Ed vehicles and KeySpan vehicles for an

         10  hour to get your fuel, and the price of fuel has

         11  gone up.

         12                 But Jed is going to answer the

         13  technical question.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER APPLEBAUM:

         15  Yes. We give two extra years on the ownership of a

         16  car, whether it would be an independent, it would

         17  get three years, plus two years for natural gas, and

         18  on a five-year car it would be two additional years,

         19  it would be seven years.

         20                 One quick other thing, through

         21  evolution, originally when the tanks came out they

         22  were steel, composite tanks. Steel was affecting the

         23  chassis of the vehicle.

         24                 Right now we have, Ford Crown

         25  Victoria offers a dedicated vehicle from the
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          2  manufacturer. We're also looking at another vehicle,

          3  the GSM, which is made in Canada, and we're putting

          4  out an RFP with NYSERDA jointly to work with the

          5  manufacturers out there in total.

          6                 The Honda Civic obviously is made in

          7  a natural gas version, and also a hybrid, it's too

          8  small for use in New York City.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.

         10                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: We're really

         11  excited about the GSM vehicle. That's the vehicle I

         12  was talking to you about where it's not only going

         13  to be hopefully an accessible vehicle for the

         14  disabled, but also to be a clean air hybrid

         15  electric.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you, Mr.

         17  Chairman.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, we have the

         19  Finance Department here to answer questions if it's

         20  necessary. My understanding is that they will not be

         21  testifying unless there are specific questions to

         22  the Finance Department. Do any members have

         23  questions for the Finance Department?

         24                 Seeing none, thank you, Commissioner.

         25                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: My pleasure.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: And staff.

          3                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Have a good day.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, the Finance

          5  staff is going to be distributing the long-awaited

          6  books to members, and then we're going to be

          7  proceeding to a vote, in about ten minutes after you

          8  get a chance to look through the book and see if

          9  there's anything that's missing.

         10                 Okay, we're going to stand in recess

         11  for ten minutes.

         12                 (Recess taken.)

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We're going to

         14  couple the votes and Counsel to Committee will read

         15  the list as to what you're voting on, and when you

         16  vote, you can decouple it. You can do that when you

         17  vote.

         18                 We're going to be voting for the

         19  items as one item, they'll be coupled together.

         20                 Leadership is taking the position

         21  that we expect everybody to vote for the package as

         22  one vote and it will be considered a leadership

         23  vote.

         24                 We will hear from Jim Caras as to the

         25  specifics of the items.
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          2                 MR. CARAS: Okay, we'll be voting on

          3  the Expense and Revenue modifications, MN 5 and MN 6

          4  and the companion resolution.

          5                 We will be voting on the pieces of

          6  legislation before us, Intro. 473, lobbyist and City

          7  clerk fees, and Intro. 474, the absentee landlord

          8  surcharge, Intro. 496-A, the sale of taxicab

          9  medallions, Intro. 520, the ICIP legislation, Intro.

         10  521, the unincorporated business tax loophole

         11  closer, the two preconsidered resolutions, as a

         12  predicate to the property tax fixing, which is the

         13  current base proportion resolution and the adjusted

         14  base proportion resolution.

         15                 The two resolutions that are a

         16  prelude to the property tax fixing which are the

         17  current base proportion resolution 972 and the

         18  adjusted base proportion resolution 973. The

         19  combined M 536 and the combined Expense contract

         20  budget resolution and tax-fixing resolution. M 537

         21  and the companion 2 capital budget resolutions. The

         22  CD budget and companion resolution, M 538. The

         23  preconsidered M and companion resolution, which is

         24  the amended debt certificates, which was just placed

         25  in front of the members, it's preconsidered M 668
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          2  and companion resolution.

          3                 And then the items that I'm going to

          4  read now are items that are not being approved by

          5  the Committee, they're being voted to be filed.

          6                 M 412, M 413, M 414, M 415, M 416, M

          7  417, M 418, M 539, M 540, M 541, M 542, M 543, and M

          8  661. Those are being voted to be filed.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, we're going

         10  to call the roll, and once again, I want to repeat

         11  that the Speaker and the leadership recommending a

         12  yes vote on the entire package and we're considering

         13  the entire package as a leadership vote. And it's

         14  going to go right to the floor. Call the roll.

         15                 (Clerk not using the microphone for

         16  the roll.)

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Weprin.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Boyland.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Lopez.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Permission to

         23  explain my vote.

         24                 I will vote aye on this item today,

         25  but I want to make for the record clear that I

                                                            60

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  strongly disagree with the actions taken in this

          3  budgetary process where over basically $4 million

          4  were taken from the Mental Health Department and

          5  transferred in the middle of the night to another

          6  pot of money inside of the budget.

          7                 Based on that, and based on my

          8  dislike in the manner in which the Commissioner of

          9  the Taxi and Limousine Commission has handled the

         10  accessibility for people with disablities in regard

         11  of taxes, I'm going to vote aye, but I want to make

         12  clear just a point on the record.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Quinn.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: If I could be

         15  excused just to explain my vote?

         16                 I vote aye but I just for the record

         17  want to reiterate the statements I made earlier

         18  about the Mental Health contracts and HHC and want

         19  to be associated with the comments just made by the

         20  Chair of that Committee, and I just want to be very

         21  clear for the record that this issue will be

         22  followed up on, with working with the leadership of

         23  Chairperson Lopez.

         24                 I vote aye.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Provenzano.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Aye.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Brewer.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Aye.

          5                 I just want to add I vote for the

          6  package, but I continue to be concerned about

          7  Industrial Commercial Incentive Program, and I hope

          8  that we'll have more discussions in the future.

          9  Thank you.

         10                 (Microphone was not used.)

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thanks to the

         13  Speaker, the Finance Committee, its Chairman, the

         14  Finance staff, I vote aye on all.

         15                 (Clerk and Council Member Gallagher

         16  not using the microphone for the vote.)

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: No on Intro.

         19  474, on preconsidered Reso 972 and 973, aye on all

         20  others.  And I would like to associate myself with

         21  the remarks made by Council Member Gallagher, had,

         22  as we have done in the past, had the tax-fixing

         23  resolution been a separate item, I would have voted

         24  no on that, as well. Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, there are
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          2  three members that didn't vote and we're going to

          3  leave the roll open for those three members and they

          4  know who they are, or we'll know who they are. So,

          5  other than that, the clerk will announce the

          6  results.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of 16 in the

          8  affirmative, zero in the negative and no

          9  abstentions, all items are adopted with the

         10  exceptions of Intro. 474, preconsidered Resolution

         11  972, and preconsidered Resolution 973, which are

         12  adopted by a vote of 14 in the affirmative, two in

         13  the negative and no abstentions.

         14                 Council members, please sign the

         15  Committee reports.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, I ask

         17  members to proceed directly to the Chamber. We will

         18  be proceeding into the Chamber for a vote as soon as

         19  we can. Right now.

         20                 (Hearing concluded at 3:00 p.m.)

         21

         22
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